
Thurrock: An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage 
and excited by its diverse opportunities and future 

Orsett Hospital Task & Finish Group
The meeting will be held at 7.00 pm on 7 November 2018

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 6SL

Membership:

Councillors John Allen, Victoria Holloway, John Kent, Joycelyn Redsell, 
Elizabeth Rigby and Luke Spillman

Agenda

Open to Public and Press

Page

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Purpose of Committee 

3  Appointment of Chair 

4  Appointment of Vice Chair 

5  Urgent Items of Business

To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B 
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

6  Declaration of Interests 

7  Terms of Reference 5 - 6

8  Information Pack 7 - 98

Background and current information such as reports from Overview 
and Scrutiny and Cabinet Committees, Orsett Hospital, the 
Integrated Medical Centres, press articles and case studies.



9  Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) Update 

10  Dates for Next Meeting 

11  Next Steps 

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:

Please contact Jenny Shade, Senior Democratic Services Officer by sending an 
email to Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Agenda published on: 30 October 2018



Information for members of the public and councillors

Access to Information and Meetings

Members of the public can attend all meetings of the council and its committees and 
have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days 
before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.

Recording of meetings

This meeting may be recorded for transmission and publication on the Council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
to be recorded.
Members of the public not wishing any speech or address to be recorded for 
publication to the Internet should contact Democratic Services to discuss any 
concerns.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at 
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because 
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local 
communities.
If you wish to film or photograph the proceedings of a meeting and have any special 
requirements or are intending to bring in large equipment please contact the 
Communications Team at CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk before the 
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will then be consulted and their agreement sought 
to any specific request made.
Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar 
devices to use social media, make recordings or take photographs these devices 
must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or 
committee.
The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has 
been discussed prior to the meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not 
disrupt proceedings.
The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording 
and use of social media if any of these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting 
proceedings at the meeting.

Page 1

mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
mailto:CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk


Thurrock Council Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device 
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.

 You should connect to TBC-CIVIC

 Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.

 A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before 
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to 
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Evacuation Procedures

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest 
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.

How to view this agenda on a tablet device

You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry 
Playbook with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged, 
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.

To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this 
meeting, Councillors should:

 Access the modern.gov app
 Enter your username and password

Page 2

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB


DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence

Helpful Reminders for Members

 Is your register of interests up to date? 
 In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests? 
 Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly? 

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?

 What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet, 
Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or 

 If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is 
before you for single member decision?

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting 
 relate to; or 
 likely to affect 

any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests? 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:

 your spouse or civil partner’s
 a person you are living with as husband/ wife
 a person you are living with as if you were civil partners

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.

A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of 
the Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests.

What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? – this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so  
significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant 
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest.

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a 
pending notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer 
of the interest for inclusion in the register 

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous 
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:
- Not participate or participate further in any discussion of 

the matter at a meeting; 
- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the 

meeting; and
- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted 

upon
If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for 
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further 
steps

If the interest is not already in the register you must 
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring 

Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature 
of the interest to the meeting

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough 
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

Non- pecuniaryPecuniary

You may participate and vote in the usual 
way but you should seek advice on 
Predetermination and Bias from the 

Monitoring Officer.

Page 3



Our Vision and Priorities for Thurrock

An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage and excited by 
its diverse opportunities and future.

1. People – a borough where people of all ages are proud to work and play, live and 
stay

 High quality, consistent and accessible public services which are right first time

 Build on our partnerships with statutory, community, voluntary and faith groups 
to work together to improve health and wellbeing 

 Communities are empowered to make choices and be safer and stronger 
together 

2. Place – a heritage-rich borough which is ambitious for its future

 Roads, houses and public spaces that connect people and places

 Clean environments that everyone has reason to take pride in

 Fewer public buildings with better services

3. Prosperity – a borough which enables everyone to achieve their aspirations

 Attractive opportunities for businesses and investors to enhance the local 
economy

 Vocational and academic education, skills and job opportunities for all

 Commercial, entrepreneurial and connected public services

Page 4



Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group

Terms of Reference

Aim:
To scrutinise the current proposed closure process of Orsett Hospital to include:

 the proposed transfer of services; 
 the timings and the operational position of the integrated medical centres; 
 to have a clear focus on the future of Orsett Hospital and to address alternative 

proposals.

Membership:
6 elected Members  (to be decided on politically proportion) 

Chair:
The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by the membership of the Task and Finish Group 
at its first meeting. The appointment will last until the work of the Task and Finish Group is 
complete.

Duration:
The Task and Finish Group shall continue until such time as all business of the Task and 
Finish Group is complete. The proposed end date of the Review will be February 2019.

Activities:
The Task and Finish Group will undertake all but not exclusively the following activities:

September 2018 Seek membership nominations from Group Leaders

September/early October 2018 Convene first meeting to:

 Meet with Officers and receive general 
information pack on the Orsett Hospital Issue

 Agree any public consultation process (for 
example focus group)

 Invite any witnesses who will be needed to 
provide background information on the Topic 

 Identify patient groups affected by closure and 
seek information from them 

 Undertake any research on the topic for Task 
and Finish Group

November 2018 Undertake a site visit to Orsett Hospital

December 2018 Hold witness session with CCG, NHS and Chair of 
Health and Wellbeing Board

January 2019 Consult with HealthWatch and Thurrock Coalition

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Early February 2019 Site visit to proposed locations of the Integrated 
Medical Centres

February 2019 Meet to formulate recommendations

Write report

Bring back report to Task and Finish Group/Health and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Cabinet

Page 6



1960

2018

Proposed model for new Integrated Medical Centre

Orsett Hospital  
Task & Finish Group 

 
Information Booklet 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group
Information Booklet

1. Timeline of Events

Committee

2. Cabinet Report on Integrated Medical Centre Delivery Plan – Phase 1
3. Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Report - Essex, Southend 

and Thurrock Joint Health Scrutiny Committee on the Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP) for Mid and South Essex – 14 June 2018

4. Joint Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of 
Reference

5. Report presented to Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – Establishment of a Task and Finish Group in Relation to 
Orsett Hospital - 6 September 2018 

6. Proposed Terms of Reference of Task and Finish Group
7. Proposed Timelines of Task and Finish Group

Hospital Plans

8. NHS Top 10 Facts about the Closure of Orsett Hospital
9. Departments and Services offered by Orsett Hospital

Press Coverage

10. How Orsett Hospital Closure Plan Came About  {Press Article}
11. Orsett Hospital Replacements “expected to be running” by 2021 {Press 

Article}
12. New Centres will cope with Hospital Demand {Press Article}
13. NHS Boss claims replacements for Orsett Hospital will cope with 

population growth {Press Article}
14. Thurrock bus service could be re-routed to serve new medical centres 

{Press Article}
15. Health Boss’s Frustration {Press Article}
16. Health Bosses Vision for Thurrock’s Health and Care System {Press Article}

Page 9



17. Survey Steps towards Tilbury Integrated Medical Centre {Press Article}

Case Studies

18. Study 1 : Chorley Hospital
19. Study 2 : Bristol University Study

Professional Documentation

20. STP – Your Care in the Best Place 
21. Moving Health Care Closer to Home – Review of Clinical Impacts
22. Background Information on proposals for the future of locally based 

health and care services currently provided by Orsett Hospital
23. DRAFT Thurrock People’s Panel – Terms of Reference

Page 10



Sustainability and Transformation Programme / Joint Health & 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Timeline of Events

CCG made 
decision with 

Basildon 
Hospital on 

what services 
would be 

transferred

Vision for 
Thurrock 
under the 

banner 
“For Thurrock 
in Thurrock”

HOSC 
Members 
agreed to 
join the 
JHOSC

Mandy Ansell 
(CCG) updated 

HOSC 
Members on 

the STP 
Footprint

Tom Abel 
updated HOSC 
members on 
the progress 

of the STP 

HOSC 
Members 

approached to 
join the JHOSC 

with Essex 
and Southend

Tom Abel, 
Basildon 
Hospital, 

updated HOSC 
Members on 
the current 
STP thinking 

and key 
events

2016 July 
2017

Sept 
2017

Nov 
2017

Jan 
2018

Andy Vowles, 
NHS England, 
reported on 
the services 
forming part 

of the STP 

JHOSC Papers 
issued for 

consultation 

March 
2018

June 
2018

Mandy Ansell 
(CCG) 

provided 
further 

updates on 
STP

July 
2018

CCG given 
the go ahead 
to secure the 

future of 
health and 

care services

2021

Expected 
date for 

everything 
to be on 

offer

Consultation 
endedP

age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



12 July 2017 ITEM: 16
(Decision 01104436)

Cabinet

Integrated Medical Centre Delivery Plan – Phase 1

Wards and communities affected: 
Tilbury Riverside and Thurrock Park
Tilbury St Chads
Chadwell St Mary

Key Decision: 
Key

Report of: Cllr Halden, Portfolio Holder for Education and Health
                  Cllr Coxshall, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration 

Accountable Head of Service: Andy Millard, Head of Planning and Growth

Accountable Director: Roger Harris, Corporate Director of Adults, Housing and 
Health
Steve Cox, Corporate Director of Environment and Place

This report is Public

Executive Summary

Tilbury is identified as one of the Council’s six Growth Hubs.  A number of planned 
and proposed housing schemes being brought forward by both the Council and the 
private sector are set to increase the local population over the coming years.  The 
development of the London Distribution Park and Tilbury Port’s broader expansion 
aspirations are increasing employment opportunities in the locality whilst Tilbury’s 
good rail connections to London and beyond give access to a wider employment 
market. 

However, Tilbury and Chadwell residents experience poor health outcomes in 
comparison to the rest of the Borough.  Partners from the health sector and the 
Council have come together with the aim of improving access to high quality health 
services and have developed an integrated model of care which aims to improve the 
quality of and access to services to reduce the health inequalities experienced by 
local residents.

Cabinet, through the Health and Well-Being strategy, has agreed a GP Standards 
Plan which aims to improve the capacity and the quality of Primary Care across the 
Borough. The development of Integrated Medical Centres forms one of the key 
planks of that Plan.

Page 13



This report gives further detail on the proposed model of care, outlines the proposed 
delivery mechanism for the capital build project and considers the Council’s role in 
both delivering and occupying part of the facility. Building this meets the Cabinet’s 
commitment to show Tilbury some love.

1. Recommendation(s) 

Cabinet is asked to:

1.1 Agree to the Council, in principle, taking the lead role in the capital 
development of the Tilbury and Chadwell IMC noting that this will 
require investment of council funds that will be met from the amount 
agreed by Council for the future and aspirational capital programme and 
is subject to a future business case being agreed by Cabinet.

1.2 Agree to the Council procuring a design team for the project on a 
phased basis and delegate authority for appointment to the Corporate 
Director of Adults, Housing and Health, in consultation with the 
Corporate Director of Environment and Place, Portfolio Holder for 
Education and Health and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration.

1.3 Agree to receive a further report outlining the preferred route for the 
development of the Purfleet Integrated Medical Centre.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1. In March 2016 Cabinet gave in principle approval to the Council leading on 
the delivery of a Health Hub to be located in the Civic Square in Tilbury.  The 
report highlighted that whilst the Council, CCG, NHS England and a range of 
health service providers were advocating the model of an integrated health 
centre, partners from the health sector were not in a position to secure the 
capital required to deliver such a facility.  It was therefore proposed that the 
Council could act as lead developer and after constructing the centre could 
lease it back to a health partner.
  

2.2. The Integrated Medical Centre would form one of four hubs across the 
borough. The other three hubs will be:

 Corringham / Stanford le hope – North East London Foundation Trust 
(NELFT) are the lead provider for this Centre.  The design process is 
ongoing and the Centre is expected to be open in 2019.

 Grays – Discussions ongoing but the Centre is likely to be on the site of 
the existing Thurrock Hospital in Long Lane

 Purfleet – The Purfleet IMC is anticipated to be located within the new 
Purfleet Town Centre development. This project is governed by a 
Development Agreement (DA) between the Council and Purfleet 
Centre Regeneration Ltd (PCRL).  There is provision within the DA for 

Page 14



a serviced site to be provided for the Health Centre.  The development 
of the Purfleet IMC will follow a similar process to the Tilbury IMC at the 
appropriate time. 

2.3. Since then discussions have continued with various health partners to 
develop the model and a proposed delivery mechanism for the scheme in 
Tilbury.  This report summarises these discussions, describes a proposed 
delivery mechanism and asks Cabinet to approve the highlighted 
recommendations so that the project can proceed to the next stage.

3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

The Model of Care

3.1. It is clear that prioritising the delivery of an integrated health facility would 
support the wider regeneration aims in Tilbury and Chadwell as well as the 
Council’s Corporate Priorities.  However, any proposed health facility must 
address the local health need and must be supported by partners from across 
the Health Sector.

3.2. The Public Health team have reviewed a significant body of evidence to 
define the current health needs of the Tilbury and Chadwell community.  Clear 
evidence suggests that the area experiences health inequalities in terms of 
access to services and has an urgent need for new facilities to address 
existing deficiencies as well as to provide additional capacity to accommodate 
the future growth in population that is expected in the area.   

3.3. The poor access to services in the local community manifests itself in a range 
of indicators which have impacts across the Health Sector such as:

 High levels of attendances to Accident and Emergency (A & E) for 
conditions that could have been more effectively treated in a 
community setting – 10,368 of the 13,399 A & E attendances from 
Tilbury and Chadwell residents in 2015/16 either received the most 
minor category of investigation or treatment, or no significant 
investigation or treatment. This accounts for 77% of A & E attendances 
in this population.

 Higher prevalence of long term conditions - the recorded prevalence of 
long term conditions in the Tilbury and Chadwell locality is higher than 
the Thurrock average for almost all conditions. In addition, there are a 
large estimated number of patients with long term conditions yet to be 
diagnosed – up to 2,195 cases of Hypertension and 1,649 cases of 
Coronary Heart Disease may be present in residents but not yet being 
diagnosed or treated.

 Higher than average rates of unplanned care admissions. 453 of the 
unplanned care admissions in 2015/16 from Tilbury and Chadwell 

Page 15



residents were due to conditions amenable to effective healthcare. The 
main cause for these admissions was influenza or pneumonia.

 Low levels of referral to community health services. Pulmonary 
Rehabilitation is a service offered to eligible patients with Chronic 
Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) to support them to manage 
their condition. However, only 20% of newly-diagnosed eligible patients 
were referred into the service in 2015/16.

 Low levels of referral to preventative support. The Rapid Response 
Assessment Service aims to provide rapid assessment and 
intervention to prevent residents entering either hospital or Adult Social 
Care Services unnecessarily; yet in Tilbury and Chadwell locality, the 
referral rate was nearly three times lower for adults aged 65+ than the 
Thurrock average in 2015/16 (9.71 per 1,000 adults compared to 27.7 
per 1,000 adults in Thurrock).

3.4. To provide modern and effective health services, partners are advocating the 
development of a new model of Integrated Medical Centres (previously called 
Health Hubs and Integrated Healthy Living Centres) which co-locate a range 
of services and providers within one building.  IMC’s are expected to include 
services which not only address a primary care, secondary care, physical and 
mental health needs but also have a positive impact on the wider 
determinants of health by providing services related to areas such as 
education, employment and housing.  This ambitious vision could transform 
health and social care provision but will need a range of diverse partners to 
work together to ensure that appropriate facilities can be developed and then 
effective services delivered from them. 

4. Options for delivery of the Capital Build

4.1. Since the last Cabinet report, discussions have been ongoing with a number 
of Council departments, the CCG, NHS England and a range of health service 
providers.  From these discussions it is clear that there remains widespread 
support for the IMC concept but that partners from the health sector are not in 
a position to design or construct the IMC themselves.

4.2. Partners to the scheme have identified the Civic Square in Tilbury as the ideal 
location for the IMC.  The Council owns the majority of this land and already 
delivers a range of services from existing buildings on the Square.  The 
precise location on the Square will be defined during the design process but 
options under consideration are either the redevelopment of the site of the 
existing Community Resource Centre (the former Fire Station building) or a 
potential extension to the Library building.

4.3. Whilst the Council has limited experience in delivering Health facilities it has 
significant experience in project management, capital developments and 
working with multi-disciplinary stakeholders.  Coupled with a potential income 
stream from service provider(s) the Council can borrow against this revenue 

Page 16



stream to secure the capital needed for the development thereby allowing it to 
take on the role of lead developer and subsequently landlord.

4.4. As well as being an instrumental player in driving improved health provision 
there is clear regeneration benefit associated with the Council playing such a 
proactive role.  In Tilbury the wider regeneration programme aims, amongst 
other things, to improve the quality of the environment and create a greater 
sense of place and local identity.  By acting as developer the Council can 
ensure that the design quality of the buildings (on a key site within the Town 
Centre) is high and successfully contributes to the place making agenda.  In 
addition, the Council can have control over the other services to be included 
within the building.  This offers the opportunity to deliver complementary 
Council services (such as social care or community hubs) from key sites.   
Public Health services are already a key component in the accommodation 
schedule but opportunities remain to expand the Council element of provision 
further to potentially include services such as Housing Officers, library 
services and the Community Hub.  This opportunity is considered in further 
detail below.

4.5. Should the Council not be minded to take on the lead role it could dispose of 
the land to a third party who could commission the development directly.  
Colleagues from the health sector have suggested that this could be a very 
lengthy process and the delivery timescale would likely be lengthened.   The 
IMC concept could still be realised but the Council’s ability to influence the 
design, build quality or complementary uses on a key site in the Civic Square 
would be reduced.  The regeneration impact achieved would therefore be 
lessened. This could present an alternative delivery method but the 
lengthened timescale and lower regeneration benefits mean that this option is 
not currently being pursued.

4.6. Given the clear benefits and the urgent need to improve facilities and service 
provision it is suggested that, subject to commercial viability being 
established, the Council takes on the role of developer.  The following 
sections explain what this role will entail.

5. NHS Process

5.1. Whilst the CCG and health service providers are fully supportive of the 
scheme, commencing service delivery from the IMC will represent a change 
to patient care and therefore approval from NHS England will be required.  
This approval is secured in two phases.  Initially an Outline Business Case 
must be submitted and if this is approved the project can then progress to a 
Full Business Case.  Patient services cannot be delivered from the Centre 
without this approval.

5.2. The Outline Business Case requires an articulation of the model of care and 
patient pathways alongside outline building design. For the Full Business 
Case planning consent must be secured for the building.  Whilst some of the 
information required to complete these submissions can be provided by the 

Page 17



CCG, the design work and planning fee requires a level of cost which will be 
invested at risk by the Council.  NHS England are engaged with the project 
and, given that the business case will not be requesting a capital commitment 
from the NHS, the risk of not receiving this approval is deemed to be low, 
however, the risk remains and should be noted.

6. Proposed Council Role

6.1. In recent months the Council and CCG have jointly funded a commission to 
translate the articulated health need into a schedule of accommodation for the 
IMC.  This work is largely complete although detailed discussions on the level 
of accommodation required for Council services need to be completed.  

6.2. A high level cost exercise to establish whether the anticipated rental income is 
likely to be able to pay back the capital cost and provide a return to the 
Council over a reasonable time period is now underway and will be completed 
before appointment of a design team. Without a detailed design and cost plan 
for the building viability cannot be definitively proven but an estimation is 
required before funding can be committed to progressing the design work.

6.3. Beyond this stage, in order to take on the role of developer, the Council will 
need to commit resource to move the project to the delivery stage and will 
have to comply with the NHS approval process highlighted above.  Resource 
will be committed at risk until the project has received approval from the NHS 
via submission and agreement of the Full Business Case.  The Full Business 
Case requires the building to be designed to RIBA Stage 3 (Developed 
Design) and planning permission secured therefore some element of cost will 
need to be incurred in advance of the necessary approval being secured.  
NHS England have been engaged throughout the discussions to date and 
have informally expressed support for the scheme and clearly stated that the 
new GP contracts being commissioned  and other services e.g. the new 
Improving Access to Psychological Treatments (IAPT) programme for this 
area must operate out of the IMC building.  At the point where the NHS has 
given approval of the Full Business Case the Council would seek to enter into 
a legal agreement with the head lessee before development would begin.

6.4. Subject to the high level cost/income plan demonstrating that the building 
could be viable the Council will commission a professional team to design the 
building.  It is clearly desirable to retain the design team throughout the 
lifetime of the project to ensure continuity and clear responsibilities in terms of 
liabilities and warranties.  To ensure that this is possible, whilst minimising the 
risk to the Council in the event of the project not proceeding, the commission 
will be tendered for the full lifetime of the design and construction process but 
awarded on a phased basis with the Council having the right to terminate the 
commission at the end of any completed phase without incurring any penalty. 

6.5. The immediate commitment required will provide sufficient design detail (to 
RIBA stage 2) to inform an Outline Business Case to NHS England.  This cost 

Page 18



is expected to be in the region of £0.2m.  On approval from NHS England the 
subsequent module will be commissioned to take the design to RIBA stage 3 
and inform a Full Business Case submission to NHS England.  The cost for 
this stage is likely to be a further £0.3m taking the Council’s total level of 
investment at risk to approximately £0.5m.

6.6. This project has already been approved for inclusion in the Council’s Future 
and Aspirational Proposals list which was signed off by Cabinet in February 
2017.  The list has a budget allocation of £2m and contains over 20 projects.  
Should the funding for the Tilbury IMC be approved a significant amount of 
this funding will be used.

6.7. The commission is expected to continue beyond the modules required to 
secure NHS approval and the total cost will therefore exceed the threshold for 
a Director level tender award. 

6.8. Upon appointing the professional team the Council will manage this contract 
securing input and sign off from health partners as appropriate.

6.9. On completion of RIBA Stage 3, and assuming approval from NHS England, 
and confirmation of commercial viability, it is intended that the Council will use 
its prudential borrowing powers to secure the capital funding required to 
procure a developer to construct the building (a further report, supported by a 
detailed business case, will be presented to Cabinet to secure approval to 
borrow the funds and tender this contract at the appropriate point).  

6.10. The Council will seek to appoint a Head Leaseholder for the whole building.  
The Head Leaseholder will be required to enter into an Agreement to Lease 
formally committing them to take on the lease of the building prior to the 
Council awarding the development contract.  

6.11. A number of health partners have expressed an interest in taking on the Head 
Leaseholder role but firm commitments cannot be finally secured until the 
building is designed and costed to a sufficient level of detail to enable rental 
costs to be estimated.  The principle for setting the rent level will be based on 
enabling the Council to pay back the capital cost plus make a return on the 
investment.  

6.12. The rental levels agreed must cover the costs of the shared spaces as well as 
any void spaces.  The CCG has agreed to specify in future contracts that their 
commissioned services must be delivered from the IMC.  This will ensure that 
rental income will be available.  Furthermore the CCG has agreed to 
underwrite the rental cost of void spaces which are allocated to the health 
services.  The Council will be required to enter into a similar agreement for 
any void costs associated with accommodation dedicated to Council services.

6.13. The leaseholder will be permitted to sub-let parts of the building to particular 
service providers in line with the requirements of the services being delivered 
from the Centre.  This will include spaces used to deliver any Council 

Page 19



commissioned services.  It should be noted that any organisation taking on 
this role is likely to apply a management charge which will represent an 
additional cost to the sub tenants.

7. Council Service Provision

7.1. There remains opportunity for Council services to be included in the Centre 
but to meet the proposed timescales decisions on which, if any, services are 
to be relocated need to be taken swiftly.  

7.2. The Council service provision in the Civic Square is focused on the Library 
building to the western edge of the Square.  This currently houses the Library, 
Community Hub and some Housing Office Services.  Some or all of these 
services could be relocated into the IMC.  

7.3. There are both benefits and disadvantages of a potential relocation.  These 
services are complementary to the Health offer and could have a positive 
impact on the wider determinants of health, the offer would be strengthened 
by co-locating.  The existing library building has recently been refurbished and 
the accommodation has been improved but the new facility could offer further 
improvements as well as offering access to flexible shared space.  Better 
value on the build costs may be achieved by bringing more services into the 
building as additional accommodation is likely to be provided on additional 
storeys on the same building footprint.  Relocation would, however, require 
rent to be paid for the new accommodation and would leave the Council with 
void space(s) to fill in the existing building.  

7.4. The decision on whether any of these services is going to be included in the 
new facility needs to be taken quickly to ensure that the brief for the design 
team is complete from the outset of the commission.  Whilst the decision 
relating to the Library and Housing Officers rests with the Council the 
Community Hub must be managed separately.  The Council has worked hard 
to give true autonomy to the Community Hubs and the Hubs are now set up 
as an established charity, Community Hubs Thurrock.  Much of the 
programme’s success can be attributed to the volunteers having a genuine 
level of authority on the future development of the Hub Programme.  Whilst 
moving into the IMC could present a real opportunity to enhance their offer the 
decision must rest with the Community Hubs Network Board.

8. Risks 

8.1. There are a number of risks facing the effective delivery of this programme.  A 
full risk register will be developed if the project is given approval to proceed 
but the main risks identified at this stage are highlighted below.

Risk Impact Probability Mitigation
Funds must be 
committed in 

Funds could 
be lost if the 

Medium Continue engagement 
with NHS England, 

Page 20



advance of 
securing approval 
from NHS 
England.

project doesn’t 
proceed.

ensure Outline 
Business Case clearly 
describes the project.  
Commission design 
team on a phased 
basis to limit exposure.

Brief for the 
design team is 
not clearly 
defined.

Increased 
project cost.

Medium Continue engagement 
with CCG and Council 
to further develop brief.  
Do not award contract 
until all partners agree 
the brief.

Proposed Head 
Lease term 
longer than the 
CCG service 
delivery 
contracts.

Lack of 
security over 
future income 
stream.

Medium The Head Lease will 
be for a term that is 
sufficient to payback 
the capital cost plus a 
return to the Council.  
An Agreement to 
Lease will be required 
before the construction 
contract is awarded.

Capital cost too 
high to be 
supported by the 
rental stream.

IMC is 
unaffordable 
and doesn’t 
proceed. 
Development 
funds are lost.

Medium Cost advice will be 
sought throughout the 
project and checked 
against affordability.

8.2. It is clear that by taking on the role of developer and landlord the Council is 
also taking on a significant element of risk in the early stages of the project 
development.  Informal feedback from NHS England is that they are 
supportive of the proposals but formal approval must be secured in order for 
the project to proceed to the construction phase.  A substantial investment will 
be required to develop the building design and achieve planning consent prior 
to this approval being secured.  The Council will mitigate this risk as far as 
possible by ensuring that any contracts awarded have clear breaks at key 
phases allowing the Council to end the contract at the end of any completed 
phase.  The dialogue with NHS England will be ongoing throughout to ensure 
that the project develops in line with NHS England requirements.

8.3. The IMC will be a bespoke facility and on completion will only be appropriate 
for occupation by Health service providers.  These services are commissioned 
variously by either the CCG or Public Health and typically have contract 
durations which do not exceed 7 years.  This will not be sufficient to pay off 
the capital cost of the building.  The Council will mitigate this risk by leasing 
initially to a Head Leaseholder who can offer a commitment in excess of the 
length of individual contracts to service providers.  This Head Leaseholder will 
be required to sign an Agreement to Lease in advance of the Council 
awarding the construction contract but significant investment in the design 

Page 21



and planning process will have been made in advance of this.  The CCG has 
committed in writing to make locating in the IMC a condition of contract award 
and will underwrite void costs in the event of breaks between contracts.

9. Reasons for Recommendation 

9.1. There are clear benefits to the Council taking on a prominent role in the 
delivery of this project.  To move to the delivery phase of this project the 
Council needs to appoint a professional team, the cost associated with this 
requires Cabinet level approval. 

10. Consultation

10.1. In March 2016 Cabinet resolved to support the principle of the Council leading 
on the development of a Health Hub in Tilbury.  Since this time consultation 
has been ongoing with the CCG and various service providers in order to 
inform the project to the position as described in this report.

10.2. Reports will be presented to Health and Well-Being Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Planning, Transport and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee prior to Cabinet.  

11. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 
impact

11.1. This project supports the Council’s corporate priority of improving health and 
wellbeing.  In particular, it supports the four principles stated in the Thurrock 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021 and has a specific reference under 
‘Goal 4 Quality care, centred around the person’ of the same strategy.

11.2. A Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has been produced to specifically inform 
the development of this project.

11.3. The project is fully aligned with the Council’s stated Vision for Tilbury agreed 
by Cabinet in December 2013.

12. Implications

12.1. Financial

Implications verified by: Mark Terry
Senior Financial Accountant

In the first instance, Cabinet will be asked to approve the release of £0.5m of 
funding from the Future and Aspirational Proposals allocation approved by 
Cabinet in February 2017, to cover the design costs up to RIBA Stage 3 and 
planning application submission, before the project has final approval from 
NHS England. If the £0.5m is borrowed over a 5 year period, the repayment 

Page 22



costs (with interest) would be £0.103m per annum. The risk that the Council 
would be taking at this stage is clearly outlined in this report. If the scheme 
were not to proceed after completion of the design stage, capital costs that 
have been incurred would have to be re-charged to the General Fund.

In the longer term, should the project receive all the necessary approvals and 
Cabinet give approval for the council to act as developer there will be a 
significant borrowing commitment that will be repaid (on commercial terms) 
over a long timeframe (20-25 years).  Before the longer term commitment is 
made a further report will be presented to Cabinet containing the full details of 
the business case and financing costs, and seeking approval to commit to 
borrowing the necessary funding.

12.2. Legal

Implications verified by: Vivien Williams
Planning and Regeneration Solicitor

There are no legal implications arising out of this report at this stage.  As the 
project develops any contracts entered in to will be checked with legal 
services prior to award.

12.3. Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie Warren
Community Development and Equalities 
Manager

This project has the potential to make a significant contribution to reducing 
health inequality in Tilbury.  Should Cabinet approve the proposed delivery 
mechanism the architects brief will ensure that the building design meets the 
latest equality legislation. 

13. Background papers used in preparing the report:

 Tilbury Regeneration Programme and Health Hubs 
http://democracy.thurrock.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=25
65&Ver=4 

 Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021 
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/strategies/health-and-well-being-strategy 

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Tilbury Integrated Healthy Living 
Centre https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/healthy-living/joint-strategic-needs-
assessment 

 
14. Appendices to the report

 None

Page 23

http://democracy.thurrock.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2565&Ver=4
http://democracy.thurrock.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2565&Ver=4
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/strategies/health-and-well-being-strategy
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/sites/default/files/assets/documents/jsna-ihlc-tilbury-201511-v01.pdf
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/sites/default/files/assets/documents/jsna-ihlc-tilbury-201511-v01.pdf
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/healthy-living/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/healthy-living/joint-strategic-needs-assessment


Report Author:

Rebecca Ellsmore
Regeneration Programme Manager
Environment and Place

Page 24



14 June 2018 ITEM: 9

Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Essex, Southend and Thurrock Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee on the Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) for Mid and South Essex
Wards and communities affected:
N/A

Key Decision:
Non Key

Report of: Roger Harris : Corporate Director of Adults, Housing and Health

Accountable Assistant Director: N/A

Accountable Director: Roger Harris : Corporate Director Adults, Housing and Health

This report is Public

Executive Summary

At the January 2018 meeting of the Thurrock Health and Well-Being Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (HOSC), it was agreed to join with Essex and Southend and 
participate in the Joint HOSC covering the STP area. The purpose of the Joint 
HOSC was to respond to the consultation document on acute reconfiguration in 
Mid and South Essex and to monitor and scrutinise the work of the STP. This 
report provides an update on the work of the Joint HOSC and seeks confirmation 
of the Thurrock representation at the Joint HOSC meetings.

1. Recommendations 

HOSC are asked to:

1.1 Note the terms of reference for the Joint HOSC with Essex and 
Southend (Appendix 1).

1.2  Agree to appoint four members to represent Thurrock HOSC at 
the joint HOSC.

1.3 Agree the approach to the Joint HOSC as outlined in 2.11.

Page 25



  2. Introduction and Background

2.1 The Mid and South Essex STP came out of the former Success Regime 
established in 2014. STPs exist across the whole country and have been 
established by NHS England to improve joint working across commissioners 
and providers and across health and social care. Our STP covers the 
geographical footprint of Mid and South Essex. This is not a natural, easily 
recognizable area but was established around the catchment areas of the 
three acute hospitals at Basildon, Southend and Mid-Essex.

2.2 The STP has an independent chair – Dr Anita Donley and is made up of the 5
CCGs across Mid and South Essex, the acute hospital group, the Mental 
Health Trust (EPUT), the Community Trust (NELFT), the three local 
authorities (Thurrock, Essex and Southend), NHS England, the three 
Healthwatch’s and GP’s i.e. the five Chairs of the five CCGs in Mid and 
South Essex.

2.3 Thurrock has expressed its concern over the role and purpose of the STP.
Clearly some services do need to be commissioned and provided over a 
larger footprint than Thurrock and this has been accepted for a long time e.g. 
some acute specialties such as the various cancer pathways.  However,
there is a concern that the STP may undermine the work of the local Health 
and Well-Being Board and some of our local initiatives e.g. For Thurrock in 
Thurrock. The Chair of the Health and Well-Being Board has written to NHS 
England expressing these concerns.

2.4 The STP formally issued its consultation document on the proposed 
reconfiguration of the services operating from the three acute hospitals in Mid 
and South Essex in November 2017. This consultation also included the 
proposals for the future of the services currently on the Orsett Hospital site. 
The consultation was led by the five Clinical Commissioning Groups in Mid 
and South Essex and concluded at the end of March 2018. A final report with 
recommendations will be going to a meeting of the Joint Committee of the 5 
CCG’s on the 4 July. A summary of the consultation responses received is 
attached at Appendix 3.

2.5    The purpose of the Joint HOSC is to scrutinise the work of the STP and any 
consultation exercises it undertakes and how it would meet the needs of the 
local population in Essex, Southend and Thurrock.

2.6 As reported to the January meeting the Department of Health guidance on
Joint Scrutiny Committees is clear - June 2014 regulations: 3.1.7:

“Regulation 30 also requires local authorities to appoint joint committees 
where a relevant NHS body or health service provider consults more than one 
local authority’s health scrutiny function about substantial reconfiguration 
proposals (referred to below as a mandatory joint health scrutiny committee). 
In such circumstances, Regulation 30 sets out the following requirements:

• Only the joint committee may respond to the consultation (i.e. rather than 
each individual local authority responding separately).

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require the provision 
of information by the relevant NHS body or health service provider about 
the proposal.

Page 26



• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require members or 
employees of the relevant NHS body or health service provider to attend 
before it to answers questions in connection with the consultation.”

3.1.18 further goes on to say “These restrictions do not apply to referrals to 
the Secretary of State. Local Authorities may choose to delegate their power 
of referral to the mandatory joint committee but they need not do so”.

2.7 It is clear from the above that the establishment of the joint HOSC is a 
requirement but the power of referral is discretionary. Therefore, Thurrock 
along with Essex and Southend, did not agree to delegate its power of 
referral to the Secretary of State over “substantial variations in service 
provision” – that remains the case.

2.8 There have been two formal public meetings of the joint HOSC and two 
informal meetings and a response on the acute services reconfiguration was 
submitted on behalf of the Joint HOSC to the STP at the end of March. This 
is attached at Appendix 2. A series of further meetings are planned including 
a meeting on 6 June which will be reported back verbally to this meeting. 
The meetings will rotate across Chelmsford, Southend and Grays and are 
being held in the evening at the specific request of Thurrock.

2.9 At the January meeting of the Thurrock HOSC it was agreed to appoint the 
then Chair and Vice- Chair (Cllr G Snell and Cllr V Holloway) plus Cllr T Fish 
and Cllr G Collins. At the first formal meeting of the Joint HOSC Cllr G Snell 
was elected as Vice- Chair with Southend taking the Chair and a further 
Vice-Chair post going to an Essex member. Cllr Snell is no longer a 
Councillor, Cllr Collins is now a member of Cabinet and we have new 
members of the Thurrock HOSC, therefore, we need to re-confirm who the 
members of the Joint HOSC from Thurrock are going to be.

2.10 In the terms of reference attached it is clear that the Joint HOSC will continue 
whilst the STP continues and so is not just for the purposes of the specific 
consultation exercise. However, it is important to establish some clear lines of 
responsibility for what is discussed at the Thurrock HOSC and what is 
discussed at the Joint HOSC. The suggested position is that those matters 
that are overwhelmingly the responsibility of one area should be discussed 
and led by the local HOSC e.g. the future of Orsett Hospital. Whereas those 
matters that cut across the whole footprint e.g. the future arrangements for 
cancer services across mid and south Essex should be discussed and led by 
the Joint HOSC. Clearly there will be some grey areas but this approach is 
proposed in order to avoid having too many duplicate discussions but most 
importantly respecting the sovereignty of local areas discussing local matters.

Page 27



2.11 Finally, it should be noted that the Lead Authority would bear staffing 
costs of arranging, supporting and hosting the meetings of the Joint 
Committee but other costs, such as obtaining expert advice, would be 
apportioned between the three local authorities.

3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1   There were concerns expressed at the September and January HOSC 
meeting that this was creating another layer of bureaucracy and potentially 
taking power and authority away from the Thurrock Scrutiny process.

3.2 As stated above, however, this is not discretionary. To mitigate against the 
concerns about a loss of local autonomy it was proposed and agreed that we 
do not delegate our power of referral and that the Thurrock HOSC continues 
to meet and consider the proposals. This would give a better opportunity to 
inform the Thurrock representatives at the Joint HOSC meeting and give 
them confidence they were representing the wider views of the Thurrock 
scrutiny process.

3.3 The joint committee does have the benefit of potentially a stronger collective 
voice from the three local authorities in particular on those areas where 
Thurrock has continually expressed its reservations about the STP process – 
too much focus on acute hospitals, a lack of focus on out of hospital care, a 
lack of strategy around primary care and no clear assessment on the impact 
these proposals will have on adult social care in particular.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1 To ensure that Thurrock plays a full and active part in the mandatory joint 
HOSC but also reserves its right over any potential referrals to the 
Secretary of State.

5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

5.1 This is covered in the body of the report and the various Appendices.

6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 
impact

6.1 N/A

7. Implications

7.1 Financial

Implications verified by: Carl Tomlinson
Finance Manager

Page 28



None at this stage as the report is largely for noting. Any costs arising from 
the establishment of the Joint HOSC would have to be contained from within 
existing resources.

7.2 Legal

Implications verified by: David Lawson
Assistant Director of Law & Governance

The body of the report addresses the relevance of Regulation 30 to 
participation in a Joint HOSC.

It should also be noted that under the Authority’s Constitution the following 
functions has been determined by Council to the Health and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Terms of Reference Para 4: “Work in 
partnership and act as a member of regional, sub-regional and local health 
scrutiny networks”.

Finally the Scrutiny Procedure Rules at Paragraph 6.9 confirm that: “Where 
the Committee (including any Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to which the Committee has appointed one or more Members) has been 
consulted by a local NHS body on any proposal for a substantial variation or 
development in local NHS services, and the Committee (having considered 
the evidence) is not satisfied that consultation has been adequate, or 
considers that the proposal would not be in the interests of the health service 
in the area, then it may report in writing to the Secretary of State, under 
section 244, NHS Act 2006.”

7.3 Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie Warren
Community Development and Equalities
Manager

None at this stage as the report is largely for noting.

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, 
Crime and Disorder)

N/A

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected 
by copyright):

See below.

Page 29



9. Appendices to the report

Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference for the Joint HOSC 
Appendix 2 – Joint HOSC response to the STP Consultation 
Appendix 3 - Summary of consultation responses

Report Author:

Roger Harris
Corporate Director of Adults, Housing and Health

Page 30



Page 1 of 6 
 

 
ESSEX, SOUTHEND AND THURROCK JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE ON THE SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION 

PARTNERSHIP / SUCCESS REGIME FOR MID AND SOUTH ESSEX  
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

1. 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1.4  
 
 

Legislative basis 
 
The National Health Service Act 2006, as amended by the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012 and the Localism Act 2011 sets out the regulation-making powers 
of the Secretary of State in relation to health scrutiny.  The relevant regulations 
are the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 which came into force on 1st April 2013.  
 
Regulation 30 (1) states two or more local authorities may appoint a joint scrutiny 
committee and arrange for relevant health scrutiny functions in relation to any or 
all of those authorities to be exercisable by the joint committee, subject to such 
terms and conditions as the authorities may consider appropriate.  
 
Where an NHS body consults more than one local authority on a proposal for a 
substantial development of the health service or a substantial variation in the 
provision of such a service, those authorities are required to appoint a joint 
committee for the purposes of the consultation.  Only that Joint Committee may: 
 

 make comments on the proposal to the NHS body; 

 require the provision of information about the proposal; 

 require an officer of the NHS body to attend before it to answer questions in 
connection with the proposal. 

 
This Joint Committee has been established on a task and finish basis, by Essex 
Health Overview Policy and Scrutiny Committee (County Council), Southend-on-
Sea People Scrutiny Committee (Unitary Council) and Thurrock Health & 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Unitary Council).  
 

2.  
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2  
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 

Purpose  
 
The purpose of the Joint Committee is to scrutinise the implementation of the 
Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and 
Success Regime (SR) and how any service changes and proposals arising from 
them meet the needs of the local populations in Essex, Southend and Thurrock, 
focussing on those matters which may impact upon services provided to patients 
in those areas.  
  
The Joint Committee will also act as the mandatory Joint Committee in the event 
that an NHS body is required to consult on a substantial variation or 
development in service affecting patients in the 3 local authority areas as a result 
of the implementation of the STP and SR. 
 
In receiving formal consultation on a substantial variation or development in 
service, the Joint Committee will consider:- 

Page 31

jshade
Text Box
                     APPENDIX 1



Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2.4 
 
 
 
 

 
2.5 
 
 
 
2.6 

 the extent to which the proposals are in the interests of the health service in 
Essex, Southend and Thurrock; 

 the impact of the proposals on patient and carer experience and outcomes 
and on their health and well-being;  

 the quality of the clinical evidence underlying the proposals;  

 the extent to which the proposals are financially sustainable. 
and will make a response to relevant NHS body and other appropriate agencies 
on the proposals, taking into account the date by which the proposal is to be 
ratified. 
 
The Joint Committee will consider and comment on the extent to which patients, 
the public and other key stakeholders have been involved in the development of 
the proposals and the extent to which their views have been taken into account 
as well as the adequacy of public and stakeholder engagement in any formal 
consultation process.  
 
Notwithstanding any of the above, the relevant parent bodies may still exercise 
an overview role in relation to STP’s, engaging in governance issues / strategic 
oversight and coordination across the STP footprints. 
 
It is anticipated that the Joint Committee will continue its deliberations and hold 
meetings during the consultation and implementation of STP plans. The Joint 
Committee will review its remit after three years and also at any time at the 
request of any of the participating authorities. 
 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
3.7 

Membership/chairing 
 
The Joint Committee will consist of four members representing Essex, four 
members representing Southend and four members representing Thurrock, as 
nominated by the respective health scrutiny committees. 
 
Each authority may nominate up to two substitute members.   
 
The proportionality requirement will not apply to the Joint Committee, provided 
that each authority participating in the Joint Committee agrees to waive that 
requirement, in accordance with legal requirements and their own constitutional 
arrangements.   
 
Individual authorities will decide whether or not to apply political proportionality to 
their own member nominations.  
 
The Joint Committee members will elect a Chairman and two Vice-Chairmen at 
its first meeting, one from each authority, so that each authority is represented in 
this role. 
 
The Joint Committee will be asked to agree its Terms of Reference at its first 
meeting.  
 
Each member of the Joint Committee will have one vote.  
 

4. Co-option 

Page 32



Page 3 of 6 
 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 

 
By a simple majority vote, the Joint Committee may at any time agree to co-opt 
representatives of organisations with an interest or expertise in the issue being 
scrutinised as non-voting members, but with all other member rights.  This may 
be for a specific subject area or specified duration. 
 
Any organisation with a co-opted member will be entitled to nominate a 
substitute member.   
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.3 
 
 

5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.5 
 
 
 
5.6 
 

Supporting the Joint Committee 
 
The lead authority will be decided by negotiation with the participating 
authorities.  The lead authority may be changed at any time with the consent of 
Essex, Southend and Thurrock. 
 
The lead authority will act as secretary to the Joint Committee. This will include: 
  

 appointing a lead officer to advise and liaise with the Chairman and Joint 
Committee members, arrange meeting venues, ensure attendance of 
witnesses, liaise with the consulting NHS body and other agencies, and 
produce correspondence and scrutiny reports for submission to the health 
bodies concerned; 

 providing administrative support; 

 organising and minuting meetings.  
 

The lead authority’s Constitution will apply in any relevant matter not covered in 
these terms of reference. 
 

The lead authority will bear the staffing costs of arranging, supporting and 
hosting the meetings of the Joint Committee.  Other costs will be apportioned 
between the authorities. If the Joint Committee agrees any action which involves 
significant additional costs, such as obtaining expert advice or legal action, the 
expenditure will be apportioned between participating authorities. Such 
expenditure, and the apportionment thereof, would be agreed with the 
participating authorities before it was incurred. 
 
The non-lead authorities will appoint a link officer to liaise with the lead officer, 
support liaison back to their respective HOSC and provide support to the 
members of the Joint Committee.  
 
Meetings shall be held at venues, dates and times agreed between the 
participating authorities.  
 

6. 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Powers 
 
In carrying out its function the Joint Committee may: 

 

 require officers of appropriate local NHS bodies to attend and answer 
questions;  

 require appropriate local NHS bodies to provide information about the 
proposals and to facilitate any site visits requested by the Joint Committee; 

 obtain and consider information and evidence from other sources, such as 

Page 33



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
6.5 

local Healthwatch organisations, patient groups, members of the public, 
expert advisers, local authority employees and other agencies. This could 
include, for example, inviting witnesses to attend a Joint Committee meeting; 
inviting written evidence; site visits; delegating committee members to attend 
meetings, or meet with interested parties and report back.  

 make a report and recommendations to the appropriate NHS bodies and 
other bodies that it determines, including the local authorities which have 
appointed the joint committee. 

 consider the NHS bodies’ response to its recommendations; 
 
In the event the Joint Committee is formally consulted upon a substantial 
variation or development in service as a result of the implementation of the STP, 
and considers:- 

 it is not satisfied that consultation with the Joint Committee has been 
adequate in relation to content, method or time allowed; 

 it is not satisfied that consultation with public, patients and stakeholders 
has been adequate in relation to content, method or time allowed; 

 that the proposal would not be in the interests of the health service in its 
area 

the Joint Committee will consider the need for further negotiation and 
discussions with the NHS bodies and any appropriate arbitration.  
 
If the Joint Committee then remains dissatisfied on the above three points it may 
make comments to Essex, Southend and Thurrock Councils. Each Council will 
then consider individually whether or not they wish to refer this matter to the 
Secretary of State or take any further action. 
 
The power of referral to the Secretary of State is a matter which will not be 
delegated to the Joint Committee.  
 
Each participating local authority will advise the other participating authorities if it 
is their intention to refer and the date by which it is proposed to do so. 
 

7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
7.5 
 

Public involvement 
 
The Joint Committee will usually meet in public, and the agenda will be available 
at least five working days in advance of meetings 
 
The participating authorities will arrange for papers relating to the work of the 
Joint Committee to be published on their websites, or make links to the agenda 
and reports published on the lead authority’s website as appropriate.   
 
A press release may be circulated to local media at the start of the process and 
at other times during the scrutiny process at the discretion and direction of the 
Chairman and the two Vice Chairmen.   
 
Patient and voluntary organisations and individuals will be positively encouraged 
to submit evidence and to attend. 
 
Members of the public attending meetings and who wish to make a statement at 
the meeting must notify the clerk by close of business on the working day prior to 
the meeting. Each person will be limited to speaking for a maximum of three 

Page 34



Page 5 of 6 
 

minutes.  If the person speaking is speaking on behalf of a group / body, a 
spokesperson must be appointed. The period for statements from members of 
the public at the meeting will be at the Chairman’s discretion and normally will 
not exceed 15 minutes in total. No response will be provided at the meeting. 
 

8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
8.3 
 
8.4 
 

Press strategy 
 
The lead authority will be responsible for issuing press releases on behalf of the 
Joint Committee and dealing with press enquiries, unless agree otherwise by the 
Committee.  
 
Press releases made on behalf of the Joint Committee will be agreed by the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Committee. 
 
Press releases will be circulated to the link officers.  
 
These arrangements do not preclude participating local authorities from issuing 
individual statements to the media provided that it is made clear that these are 
not made on behalf of the Joint Committee. 
 

9. 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
9.3. 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 

Report and recommendations 
 
The lead authority will prepare a draft report on the deliberations of the Joint 
Committee, including comments and recommendations agreed by the 
Committee. Such report(s) will include whether recommendations are based on 
a majority decision of the Committee or are unanimous.  Draft report(s) will be 
submitted to the representatives of participating authorities for comment.  
 
Final versions of report(s) will be agreed by the Joint Committee Chairman and 
two Vice Chairmen.  
 
In reaching its conclusions and recommendations, the Joint Committee should 
aim to achieve consensus. If consensus cannot be achieved, minority reports 
may be attached as an appendix to the main report.  The minority report/s shall 
be drafted by the appropriate member(s) or authority (ies) concerned.  
 
Report(s) will include an explanation of the matter reviewed or scrutinised, a 
summary of the evidence considered, a list of the participants involved in the 
review or scrutiny; and an explanation of any recommendations on the matter 
reviewed or scrutinised. 
 
In addition, in the event the Joint Committee is formally consulted on a 
substantial variation or development in service, if the Joint Committee makes 
recommendations to the NHS body and the NHS body disagrees with these 
recommendations, such steps will be taken as are “reasonably practicable” to try 
to reach agreement in relation to the subject of the recommendation.    
 
The Joint Committee itself does not have the power to refer the matter to the 
Secretary of State.  
 
 
 

Page 35



Page 6 of 6 
 

10. 
 
10.1 
 
 

Quorum for meetings 
 
The quorum will be a minimum of three members, with at least one from each of 
the participating authorities. This will should include either the Chairman or one 
of the Vice Chairmen. Best endeavours will be made in arranging meeting dates 
to maximise the numbers able to attend from the participating authorities. 
 

 

Page 36



6 September 2018 ITEM: 13

Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Establishment of a Task and Finish Group in relation to 
Orsett Hospital
Wards and communities affected: 
All 

Key Decision: 
Non-key decision

Report of: Jenny Shade, Senior Democratic Services Officer

Accountable Assistant Director: David Lawson,  Assistant Director of Law & 
Governance

Accountable Director: Sean Clark, Corporate Director of Finance and IT

This report is public

Executive Summary
          
Following the announcement that Orsett Hospital will close, Councillor Holloway, 
Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee expressed that 
Terms of Reference for a Task and Finish Group to be brought to the Committee for 
consideration.

1. Recommendation(s)

1.1 That the Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
establish a Task and Finish Group under the title of review of the future 
options for Orsett Hospital. 

1.2 That the terms of reference (attached as Appendix 1) be adopted.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 Following the Joint Committee of the five Clinical Commissioning Groups in 
Mid and South Essex held on the 6 July 2018 it was agreed that Orsett 
Hospital would close. It was also agreed that Orsett Hospital would not close 
until the four Integrated Medical Centres are up and running and that no 
clinical services for Thurrock patients would move outside of Thurrock. This 
agreement had been consistent with the Memorandum of Understanding 
agreed between the Council and Health partners in 2017.

2.2 The closure of the hospital will see all healthcare services transferred to new 
medical centres which will be located across Thurrock, Basildon and 
Brentwood.

Page 37



2.3 Thurrock Council currently works alongside Essex and Southend Councils on 
a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee to review the Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership for Mid and South Essex to which Thurrock 
Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members attend.

2.4 The proposed review of the future of Orsett Hospital will be a Task and Finish 
Group as defined by the Constitution, and membership will be appointed 
through nominations by political leaders. 

2.5      The Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee will act as the 
parent committee to any task and finish group it establishes.  

 
3.       Options and Analysis of Options

3.1 The Terms of Reference are not exhaustive and there are options to explore 
other methods of research and information gathering.

3.2 A Task and Finish Group is the most appropriate body for the review of the 
future of Orsett Hospital. This option preserves the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s autonomy to undertake its own workload whilst minimising 
formality and bureaucracy by allowing public meetings to be convened as and 
when required.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1 This recommendation would represent an effective way for the Council to 
discharge any formal Member related activity in relation to the review of Orsett 
Hospital.

4.2 It would also allow the Committee to add an objective viewpoint to the current 
processes in relation to moving services from Orsett Hospital.

5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

5.1 None

6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 
impact

6.1 The recommendation is seeking to establish a Task and Finish Group that will 
allow elected members, as well as members of the public representing 
relevant interest groups, to engage and shape the Council response to the 
review of Orsett Hospital. This promotes and increases democracy. 

7. Implications

7.1 Financial 

Implications verified by   Jo Freeman

Page 38



 Management Account Social Care & 
Commissioning

There are no financial implications in the establishment of the Task and Finish 
Group as no Member will receive a special responsibility allowance for the 
duties. Officer time will be required to attend and carry out the work of the 
Task and Finish Group. Any financial implications arising from 
recommendations of the Task and Finish Group would need to be assessed 
when appropriate.  

7.2    Legal

Implications verified by   David Lawson
Assistant Director of Law & Governance

The establishment of a Task and Finish Group complies with Chapter 4 Rule 
8 of the constitution.       

7.3 Diversity and Equality 

Implications verified by    Becky Price
Community Development and Equalities

There are no diversity or equality implications related to the establishment of 
this Task and Finish Group. Appointments will be made through political 
Group Leaders and any lay co-opted member will be appointed through a fair 
and equitable process. 

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, 
Crime and Disorder)

None

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location 
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected 
by copyright):

           None

9. Appendices to the report

Appendix 1: Terms of Reference 

Report Author:

Jenny Shade
Senior Democratic Services Officer

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group

Terms of Reference

Aim:
To scrutinise the current proposed closure process of Orsett Hospital to include:

 the proposed transfer of services; 
 the timings and the operational position of the integrated medical centres; 
 to have a clear focus on the future of Orsett Hospital and to address alternative 

proposals.

Membership:
6 elected Members  (to be decided on politically proportion) 

Chair:
The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by the membership of the Task and Finish Group 
at its first meeting. The appointment will last until the work of the Task and Finish Group is 
complete.

Duration:
The Task and Finish Group shall continue until such time as all business of the Task and 
Finish Group is complete. The proposed end date of the Review will be February 2019.

Activities:
The Task and Finish Group will undertake all but not exclusively the following activities:

September 2018 Seek membership nominations from Group Leaders

September/early October 2018 Convene first meeting to:

 Meet with Officers and receive general 
information pack on the Orsett Hospital Issue

 Agree any public consultation process (for 
example focus group)

 Invite any witnesses who will be needed to 
provide background information on the Topic 

 Identify patient groups affected by closure and 
seek information from them 

 Undertake any research on the topic for Task 
and Finish Group

November 2018 Undertake a site visit to Orsett Hospital

December 2018 Hold witness session with CCG, NHS and Chair of 
Health and Wellbeing Board

January 2019 Consult with HealthWatch and Thurrock Coalition

APPENDIX 1

Page 41



Early February 2019 Site visit to proposed locations of the Integrated 
Medical Centres

February 2019 Meet to formulate recommendations

Write report

Bring back report to Task and Finish Group/Health and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Cabinet

Page 42



Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group

Proposed Timelines 

Prepare 
Report and 
present to 

HOSC

September 
2018

Task and 
Finish 
Group 

approved 
at HOSC

February 
2019

October 
2018

November 
2018

December 
2018

January 
2019

February 
2019

Site Visit to 
proposed 
Integrated 

Medical 
Centres

Consult with 
HealthWatch 
and Thurrock 

Coalition

Hold Witness 
Sessions

Site Visit to 
Orsett 

Hospital

Hold First 
Task and 

Finish Group

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



New Hospital Research

 Papworth Hospital, Cambridge – due for completion April 2018 (delayed until 
September 2018)

o Becoming a cardiothoracic specialist hospital care
o Room for 24,400 inpatient and day cases & 73,600 outpatient cases; 310 

beds; 7 operating theatres
o Costs: £165 million being built by Skanska 

 Approved a £40 million investment programme for new equipment 
and infrastructure in the project

 Midland Metropolitan Hospital, Birmingham -  due for completion 2022 
o 2/3rds completed in January 2018 until work was halted by the collapse of 

Carillion (work began again August 2018, was due to open 2019)
o Room for 669 beds, 15 operating suites
o Cost: £350 million being built by Carillion (had to be bailed out for £315 

million by the government) 

Page 69



 Royal Liverpool University Hospital, Liverpool – due for completion in March 2017 
(delayed until 2020 as cladding used found not to meet fire safety regulations)

o Cost: £335 million being built by Carillion (until their collapse, building work 
has now ceased although almost completed)

 Announced in December 2013 that £429 million redevelopment plan 
would begin

o 18 theatres, 23 wards and 646 bedrooms

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98


	Agenda
	 
	7 Terms of Reference
	8 Information Pack
	Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group Index
	Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group Timeline of Events
	Cabinet Report - Integrated Medical Centre Delivery Plan - Phase 1
	HOSC Report - Essex, Southend and Thurrock Joint Health Scrutiny Committee on the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) for Mid and South Essex
	Joint HOSC Terms of Reference
	HOSC Report - Establishment of a Task and Finish Group in relation to Orsett Hospital
	Task & Finish Group - Terms of Reference
	Orsett Hospital Task and Finish Group Proposed Timelines
	Press Articles
	Case Studies
	STP - Your Care in the Best Place
	The Future of locally based Health and Care Services currently provided by Orsett Hospital
	Thurrock People's Panel - Terms of Reference




